
Page 1 of 7 

                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 

Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee 

Monday 6 May 2025, 4.30pm 
Held in M11, Greenhead College 

Governors present: 
Chris Kneale (until 17.30); Connie Laing (via Teams); John 
Holroyd (Chair); Richard Armstrong (from 16.35) 

In attendance 
Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Sharon Roper 
(Clerk)  

Apologies: Mohammed Usman; Mo Bunter; Stuart Taberner 

Governor attendance: 57% governor attendance 

  
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome and 
apologies 

 
JHO welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 
 

 
 

 
3. F&E Minutes 
24/3/25  
 

 
3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 24/3/25, previously 
circulated. 
Minutes approved by Committee, signed by Chair, returned 
to Clerk for filing.  
 
3.2  Matters arising not covered on agenda, Action Log   
document, previously circulated. 
Several outstanding actions will be dealt with at Strategy 
Day 7/5/25. 
F&E members approved closure of the actions: 
9-10-13-14-15-16-17-20 

 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Finance  

 
4.1 F&E committee members reviewed March 
management accounts and narrative, previously circulated.  
 
LME summarised key points:   
1. March accounts show an expected outturn which has 
reduced. 
2. Now the pay award has been settled, LME can drill into 
the staffing budget which is the main area of flex.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 

The teaching budget looks underspent due to lost salaries 
for strike action which was £46,000. Recruitment is always 
budgeted at salary scale .9 but some new staff have been 
recruited onto lower pay scales.   
One staff member in the new CLT structure did not start in 
role until January, so there was a saving in his salary in 
term one.  
3. Increased national Insurance contributions started on 
1/4/25, National Insurance Contribution Funding will be 
received but the amount has not yet been confirmed. LME 
has been prudent and not included this funding yet.  
4. GC will receive a grant to help towards cost increases, 
but the amount has not been confirmed; £168,000 has been 
added into the budget which is the minimum anticipated 
amount.   
5. One of the main drivers of additional costs is the Bursary 
Audit. 
6. Cash outflow for the year is almost £1.5 million on fixed 
assets which include the CIF bid, Cooksey heating issues, 
new computer rooms, new library, new furniture, IT 
upgrades, and a new gym which will hit the 2024/25 
accounts.  
7. RAR asked if anything will be delayed into the next 
financial year because of the delay in handover of the new 
building.  
LME has moved items which the delay will impact into next 
academic year. In the forecast there is £1.6 million relating 
to the central hub, digital strategy, perimeter fencing and 
security gates for 2025/26. 
RAR asked which year the items for the new building fall -
the outdoor furniture and gym equipment will be in 2024/25, 
and the rest will be in 2025/26.  
8. JHO said at the start of the academic year GC had £4.5 
million and the balance will reduce to £3.1 million at year 
end and asked what the balance will be at the end of next 
year – LME predicts more than £2 million outflow next year, 
although this balance does not include £1.4 million invested 
on the Flagstone Platform. 
LME suggested a further detailed conversation about the 
forecast and finalised budget at the next F&E 30/6/25. 
9. JHO stressed how important it is to have 2900 students 
in college for 2025/26. LME said with 2900 students at GC 
there will be another period of lagged funding for the 
additional students which will mean another year of deficit, it 
then plateaus and returns to a steady surplus.  
LME anticipates that in 2025/26 £100,000 from cash 
reserves will be required to facilitate extra staffing. 
10. RAR asked about the recruitment target of 2900 
students if there were plus or minus 50 students.   
SWA said it is less likely to be minus fifty students and said 
the course viability work has caveated it. SWA said GC is 
more likely to have stronger conversion rates at enrolment, 
with an aim of class sizes of 23 and they can be flexed to 
24.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 7 

RAR asked about the under recruitment in the last 2 years – 
SWA said more offers have been made this year.  LME has 
forecasted 2900 students which feels comfortable and 
achievable for the site, if there is under recruitment 
judgements will be made about where savings can be 
made.  
RAR asked about PE which have smaller classrooms – they 
will not be expected to accommodate 23 or 24 students.   
SWA said that offers made reflect departmental spaces.  
LME is mindful of the significant spend on estates and 
infrastructure over the next few years and said a strategic 
plan is needed for subsequent years to focus on what cash 
is needed and how it will be spent.   
11. The DfE revenue capital allocation was taken out of the 
management accounts because there had been no 
confirmation. Subsequently £67,000 allocation has been 
confirmed, and this will be added back into the accounts.  
12. The £500,000 balloon payment for the loan is due in 
December 2025. 
JHO asked if there are any other balloon payments on GC’s 
loans – the second loan does not have a balloon payment 
and will be repaid in January 2027.   
13. JHO asked how the lettings income has increased – 
SWA said the lettings procedure has been formalised, and 
the facilities have been advertised. 
CKN asked if the income is from sports facilities – it is from 
the MUGA and Greenhead House. 
JHO asked about the capital expenditure which straddles 
the year end and asked about the accuracy of the budget 
when the new build is handed over – SWA is confident 
about the costs, purchase orders are currently being 
placed, and a Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM) 
schedule has been built in.   
 
4.2 LME summarised the draft Budget 2025/26, previously 
circulated. 
1. This is a detailed first draft with more to be added, further 
work includes meetings with the HR director and HoDs to 
ensure the staffing budget is correct.   
2. This is a deficit budget; the main reason for this is pay.  
Extra teachers and ALS are needed to facilitate the 
recruitment of additional students and an increase in high 
needs students.  
Staff continue to move up pay scales. 
The annual pay award is assumed at 3% but this may be 
adjusted as 4% has now been mooted.   
3. There has been an increase in funding together with an 
increase of 3.78% which was to help with the pay award. 
4. Non pay costs have reduced due to a new gas contract. 
The energy costs for the new hall are unknown.   
5. It looks like there is a saving on the teachers support line, 
but this reflects the extra bursary money in 2024/25.  
6. Exam costs will increase as the cohort is larger. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 7 

7. A new HR/Finance system and new IT software have 
been included.  
RAR asked if a decision has been made about the 
HR/Finance system – it has, and LME anticipates that it will 
save time and ease pressure for the HR and Finance 
teams. Staff will have log ins based on their role and will be 
able to see budgets, absence and management 
information. 
8. The deficit has eased slightly due to increased DfE 
funding and capital revenue but will be driven by increased 
staffing costs. 
9. Staffing cost percentage will rise to 79%, this drops to 
76% after a few years.  
SFCA recommend 71% for this KPI but have indicated their 
recommendation might increase to 74/75% due to the 
recent pay awards and increases to National Insurance.  
SWA said that GC’s pay costs are slightly higher because 
teachers deliver the pastoral system. This is one of the 
college’s unique selling points.  
RAR said that Sixth Sense analysis highlighted that the GC 
produced higher retention rates using this pastoral system.   
JHO said CLT need to keep on top of staff pay and asked 
for regular benchmarking to take place.  
LME asked governors if they are aware of which colleges 
have teachers delivering the pastoral system – RAR 
suggested Hills Road.   
10. Cash outflow at the end of 25/26 is expected to be £2 
million: £500,000 for the loan and the remainder fixed 
assets. £581,000 committed this year will fall into next AY 
and include fencing, lockers and laptops.  
Digital strategy will deliver laptops for all staff, IT 
infrastructure and white boards over a three-year period.  
11. The final budget will be presented at F&E on 30/6/25 
together with forecasts. 
12. The budget will return to a surplus in 2026/27, and 
Financial Health will return to Outstanding.   
13. JHO noted that an increase of 174 students equals 
£700,000 – LME said the students will be facilitated in 
2025/26, but the funding will be lagged.  
LME has updated her DfE contact about another year of 
deficit and high pay costs and the plan that GC will move 
into a surplus in two years.   
14. RAR asked where the increase in exam costs is shown 
– it is in the general expenses line and exam costs are 
increasing by £36,000.   
The full document will be shared with the final budget. 
15. RAR asked if there is opportunity to drive other income 
further – SWA said enquiries about letting classrooms and 
the hall are mainly for out of hours lets which would make it 
unprofitable due to overtime, staffing levels, health and 
safety, potential staff recruitment and heating.  
CKN asked if it can be priced with these costs included – 
SWA said the premises team are stretched and the prices 
would have to include new staff to facilitate the lettings.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 7 

RAR asked for further understanding and cost effectiveness 
of out of hours lettings and used a previous request from 
Musica who wanted to use the site on Saturdays as an 
example. 
RAR suggested that JRL have an initial chat with Musica to 
understand what they potentially might want from a letting.  
CKN said that in the past lettings have happened during the 
evenings and weekends – SWA said this was previously 
facilitated with the caretaker living onsite.   
RAR said the other income line used to be 2.5% and the 
college should find ways to increase this. 
16. LME feels the other income line can be increased by 
ALS department increasing the income they claim and 
better communication and advertisement of the campus fee.  
JHO noted that the campus fee income is forecast to 
increase. Using some of the Bursary money for the campus 
fee would be allowable. 
17. JHO summarised that the budget will come to the next 
F&E meeting for approval and then F&E will recommend to 
Corporation on 7/7/25. 
 
4.3 Fixed Asset Register, previously circulated –  
F&E members noted the Fixed Asset Register. 
  

 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
JRL 

 
5. Sustainability 
update  

 
LME gave a verbal update. 
- Recycle bins have been implemented around college, and 
a marketing communication will be sent to students and 
staff with instructions in their use.  
- GCSA and CLT will undertake carbon literacy training in 
July. Next year this will be rolled out to all staff.  
- Twenty students will attend a three-day IVE project driven 
sustainability course.   
- SST (Sustainability lead) continuously promotes 
sustainability in college.  
- GC will provide loans for staff public transport annual 
passes that staff can repay over twelve months to promote 
sustainable travel.   
- The new finance system will help with accounting for the 
college carbon footprint.  
It will allow top suppliers to be RAG rated in relation to 
sustainability.  
- Sustainability will be at the forefront when looking at 
Digital Strategy.  
- RAR asked about an update on the sustainability priority 
of achieving a year-on-year reduction of the college carbon 
footprint.  
LME asked if there is a benchmark – RAR said that SST 
had a benchmark in 2022 and there were measures for 
level one and two.  
RAR asked for assurance that this is underway – LME said 
basic data will be available. SWA and LME agreed to 
further the sustainability measures in conjunction with SST.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME/SWA 



Page 6 of 7 

 
6. Update on the 
Estate, Catering 
and Procurement  

 
No update in this meeting. 
There will be an update at Strategy Day 7/5/25.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
7. Risk Register 
 

 
The Risk Summary and Hirst Risk Register were reviewed 
by committee members, previously circulated. 
 
- T2 College receives poor Ofsted report – this risk has 
been moved to monitor due to the recent Outstanding 
inspection. 
- T4 Industrial action – remains a live action. NEU have 
announced potential further action in the summer. 
- E9 Personal claim injury – RAR asked about the progress 
of claims. SWA said one claim has been settled at a much 
lower amount than claimed which will give assurance that 
insurance premiums will remain stable. 
Another claim is with our insurers solicitors; there may have 
been a defect which was down to our builders.  
- JHO asked if the risk of not recruiting the target of 2900 
student is on the register – SWA confirmed that student 
recruitment and retention are risks. 
- RAR said that over recruitment is not captured as a risk.   
- JHO asked for an update of the Hirst Risk Register -DfE 
confirmed that the new building will be handed over on 
22/8/25 and early access has been granted for installations 
and the premises team will work over the bank holiday 
weekend to get ready for staff returning to work.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8. Policies to 
review 
 

 
8.1 LGPS Employers Discretions Policy –  
JHO summarised the policy relates to additional pension 
contributions. If the college has the financial ability, it can 
consider additional pension contributions, but the college is 
under no obligation to do so. 
LME said there have been no amendments to the policy.  
F&E committee members approved the policy. 
 
8.2 Reserves Policy –  
LME was going to combine this policy with the Treasury 
Management Policy, but it would make one policy too 
lengthy, so the policies have been linked.  
Recommendations about cash reserves from a previous 
audit have been added into the policy. 
JHO asked about reserves being 1% of income and asked if 
this means cash reserves – LME said it is cash reserves.  
JHO asked if it should be higher than 1% - LME said it 
depends on the college’s future plans. 
RAR asked if it means 1% per year which will not be 
achieved this year or next year – it does mean 1% per year.  
LME said the forecast and rationale explain why GC is 
spending its reserves and DfE have been made aware, and 
the pot will start to build up in two years.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 7 

LME asked if a caveat needs to be added – RAR suggested 
wording like ‘if the government does not provide sufficient 
funding to cover costs and expenses’.  
JHO asked about the policy wording of ‘funds’ and assumed 
this meant balance sheet reserves – LME said the policy 
relates to cash reserves.   
JHO is aware of an academy college who have reserves of 
5% of income and asked if this policy should have a 
balance sheet figure.  
JHO is nervous as the college currently has deficits, he 
understands why the college has spent cash but would 
prefer the Reserves Policy to be tighter.  
LME will look at the percentage of balance sheet reserves 
other FE colleges hold.  
SWA is aware of academies working to 5% which was a 
cumulative bottom-line balance.  
JHO and LME will discuss the Reserves Policy in more 
detail offline. 
RAR reminded F&E members that when the college was 
moved into the public sector reserves were protected until 
2026 and there was no commitment beyond this and asked 
LME to take this forward with her DfE contact.  
 

 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
LME 
 
 
JHO/LME 
 
 
 
LME 
 

 
9. College 
Financial 
Statements 
2023/24 

 
College Financial Statements – the college currently does 
not have this statement from DfE. 
The Clerk said the letter used to come from ESFA and 
asked if asked if non-receipt has been caused by ESFA 
being closed recently and responsibility moving back to 
DfE.  
RAR will check his emails as he has been copied into the 
College Financial Statement in the past.  
LME to chase the College Financial Statements 2023/24 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 

 
10. Any other 
business 

 
RAR asked if a five- or six-year forecast will be presented at 
Strategy Day – at Strategy Day the forecast will go to 
2029/30, and the full detail will come to F&E on 30/6/25.  
 

 
 
 

 
11. Confidentiality 

 
Nothing identified. 

 

 
12. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; Monday 30 June 25, 4.30pm, at College  
 

 
 
 

 
 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 17/6/25 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 30/6/25 


